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Local News

INDIA
Calcutta School of Tropical Medicine

The annual report of the Calcutta School of Tropical
Medicine for 1935 was drawn up by Brevet-Colonel R. N.
Chopra, I.M.S.,, who succeeded the late Lieut.-Colonel
H. W. Acton at the beginning of that year as director.
The present report makes special reference to epidemic
dropsy and cerebro-spinal meningitis. In the first of these
it was shown that cardiac enlargement occurred in about
30 per cent. of cases, and that there was no myocardial
degeneration though the heart did not obtain adequate
rest. The various stages of the evolution of sarcoids in
this disease were defined, and evidence was obtained indi-
cating that the proliferation of the epithelial cells and the
formation of new capillaries was probably caused by a
toxin. Epidemiological studies seemed to point to in-
fection as the aetiological factor. Doubt is cast upon the
so-called mystery disease “ jhin-jhinia” being a clinical
entity. In the department of pathology, bacteriology, and
helminthology investigations have been continued on the
cholera bacteriophage. The gross mortalities in two series
of cases, in one of which bacteriophage was added to the
usual routine treatment, showed that definite benefit fol-
lowed this addition. The figures in those cases from which
agglutinating vibrios were isolated provided even stronger
indications, the general impression being that complica-
tions such as uraemia might be averted and the general
course of the infection be rendered milder. The Mosquito
Transmission Inquiry concluded that intensive transmission
of malaria was not confined to the monsoon period of
three or four months, but was possible all the year round
under the conditions prevailing in Calcutta. In the depart-
ment of pharmacology it was shown that there was no
direct relation between the concentration of quinine in the
blood and the parasite count at any particular time, and
that the action of quinine on the parasite did not appear
to be a direct one. The Anaemia and Respiratory
Diseases Inquiry showed that the vast majority of anaemias
met with in the tea gardens were due to “ conditioned ”
iron deficiency. In all cases investigated there was heavy
hookworm -infection ; the presence of these parasites did
not affect regeneration of the blood when sufficient iron
was given, although the improvement was not maintained
in cases in which the infection persisted. Tetrachlor-
ethylene proved to be a cheap and effective remedy for
this infestation. All the papers and memoirs which have
been published in the Indian Journal of Medical Research
and the Indian Medical Gazette are reproduced as
appendices to this report.

Medical Relief in the Punjab

Colonel C. H. Reinhold, Inspector-General of Civil
Hospitals in the Punjab, in his annual report for 1935
maintains that the Punjab leads the rest of India in the
distribution of dispensaries on an area and population
basis, but adds that the need to-day is a wider appreciation
of the extent of tuberculosis, especially in the overcrowded
towns. Hill sanatoria only touch the problem, and until
the headquarters of each district has a sanatorium in its
suburbs the problem will remain. He believes that the
tuberculosis unit of each district should be tripartite,
embodying a diagnostic dispensary in the town, a hospital
for advanced and observation cases on its outskirts, and
a sanatorium for curable cases within reasonable distance
of the residences of relatives of the patients. This is
being effected in Amritsar and Rawalpindi owing to local
official efforts and public generosity, while in connexion
with the Mayo Hospital, Lahore, a tuberculosis institute
has been established. No appreciable progress was made
in the year under review in respect of medical aid for
women by female practitioners, and purdah women are

consequently still suffering from great neglect. Colonel
Reinhold insists that it is necessary, therefore, to proceed
further with the Government scheme of 1926, which Is
largely in abeyance owing to financial stringency. This
scheme envisaged the establishment of a separate women's
hospital at the headquarters of each district under the
charge of a woman assistant surgeon. There are at
present fifty separate hospitals for women under the
charge of medical women, five of which are maintained
by the Government, twenty-three by mission authorities,
and the remainder by various organizations. The number
of women medical students is increasing slowly, and addi-
tional facilities are having to be provided for them in
some teaching centres. The leprosy survey in the Punjab
is proceeding, but the Government considers it impractic-
able at present to apply to the Province the provisions of
the Indian Lepers Act. It has been decided, however, to
push forward a scheme for establishing a settlement for
“burnt out” cases, to which lepers from the various
homes could be transferred, thus making room for the
treatment of a greater number of active cases.

ENGLAND AND WALES

The General Infirmary at Leeds

Since the General Infirmary at Leeds was opened for
the reception of patients in the year 1869 a good many
extensions have been carried out to meet its increasing
requirements resulting from the growth in the number of
patients treated and from the improved methods of deal-
ing with these. One of the first was the provision of a
separate nurses’ home in the late ’seventies, very soon
found to be inadequate for the increasing staff and having
to be enlarged in 1885. An additional nurses’ home was
built in 1898. Among the greater extensions of the
Infirmary will always be associated the names of Mr. R.
Benson Jowitt and Mr. Charles Lupton. With that of
the former one thinks of the provision of an extra ward
pavilion, a new out-patient department, the pathological
block, and an isolation department. With that of the
latter one must always associate the King Edward
memorial extension. This provided another large ward
pavilion, new operating theatres, a new out-patient depart-
ment, an extension of the accommodation for the nurses,
and some important structural alterations. But things
cannot stand still, and in large hospitals, especially

those forming an essential part of a medical school, there
can be no such thing as finality. In 1933, therefore, the
foresight of Mr. Lupton, and the enthusiasm of .
A. P. Nicholson, the present chairman, led to the launch-

- ing of a great appeal for £250,000. Yorkshire has

responded generously to this, and on the last day of 1936
it was announced that the goal had been reached. Some
of the objects for which the appeal has been made are
already well in hand, and one of them, inasmuch as it
has now been completed, may be briefly referred to here.
This consists in a further enlargement of the nurses’ home,
and has been most happily carried out. The other objects
for which the appeal was launched were a very com-
plete and well-equipped out-patient department, and a
new ward pavilion for paying patients, which has long
been a crying want. The work on these two departments
has already begun.

St. Mary Abbots Hospital, Kensington

The London County Council announces that the Bishop
of Kensington will open a new operating theatre and x-ray
department at St. Mary Abbots Hospital, Marloes Road,
Kensington. The ceremony takes place to-day, Friday,
January 15, at 3 pm. The estimated cost of the new
operating theatre and x-ray department, including equip-
ment and engineering services, is approximately £13,500.
The new buildings, covering an area of 5,100 square yards,
are approached from the adjacent ward block by means
of an enclosed corridor. St. Mary Abbots Hospital and
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the adjoining institution occupy a site of about eight acres.
The buildings were erected at various periods between
1870 and 1900. Since its transfer to the L.C.C. on April 1,
1930, the hospital has been * appropriated "—that is, it

has been taken out of the scope of the Poor Law and

is, so far as its accommodation permits, available to all
residents in the county of London. During the quarter
ended September 30, 1936, the average daily number of
in-patients was 413. Smce 1930 new accommodation has
been provided for the maternity and gynaecological
sections, and a pathological laboratory to serve a group
of the Council’s general hospitals has also been provided
at St. Mary Abbots. Hydraulic lifts have been replaced
by modern electric lifts ; the two laundries which formerly
served the needs of the hospital and institution have been
combined and modernized, and other works of improve-
ment are in hand. The Council is also proceeding with
the adaptation and reconditioning of the institution build-
ings (which will be used for hospital purposes) in order
to render them suitable for the accommodation of sick
persons.
The Scientific Instrument Maker

Three floors of the Imperial College of Science at
South Kensington were occupied during the first week
of the New Year with an assembly of scientific instru-
ments. The occasion was the twenty-seventh annual
exhibition of the Physical Society. Two of the floors
were given up to a trade section, and the third to a
research and experimental section, to which the National
Physical Laboratory largely contributed ; but so many
commercial firms now undertake research and experiment
on a generous scale that the distinction is difficult to
maintain. Amid instruments of all kinds, some of them
belying in the unwieldiness of their names the symmetry
and precision of their action, the microscope retained its
pride of place. Probably there were more microscopes
on view than instruments of any other kind, indicative of
the place which microscopy and photomicrography have
taken, not only in medical and bidlogical applications,
but in general scientific and industrial work and research.
One feature was a double microscope for micro-dissection.
In physiology, when micro-dissecting operations have to
be carried out, it is often difficult for one person to do
the whole of the manipulation alone. Some ingenious
inventor has accordingly devised an arrangement enabling
two binocular microscope bodies to be placed simul-
taneously back to back so that two workers can view
and operate on the specimen at the same time.
Next to these instruments for extending the human eye
were instruments for intensifying the human ear. The
sense of hearing, to judge from the instruments provided,
seems to be increasingly appreciated. No doubt in time
the prejudice against wearing hearing-aids, long since
outworn in the matter of spectacles, will disappear. Some
of the hearing-aids were very inconspicuous, notably one
light-weight portable apparatus, embodying a carbon
microphone, developed in the department of the education
of the deaf at Manchester University. Making the deaf
hear is not a simple matter of amplification of sound,
and one firm specializes in automatic volume control in
deaf-aid amplifiers. This control limits the sound output
of the instruments to a degree tolerable to the user, and
the distortion due to overloading of the output valve
with loud sounds is prevented. In modern civilization
the suppression of unwanted noise is at least as impor-
tant as the amplification of desired sounds, and as a step
to noise elimination and control there were noise meters
on view, one of them designed to meet the requirements
of the Air Ministry for the measurement of noise in
aircraft, but capable of being used for other purposes
also. Several examples of diathermy and short-wave
apparatus were shown, portable and fixed; also a port-
able cardiograph with a camera having a continuous
spool of paper driven at speeds from 20 to 80 millimetres
per second. Anather interesting device was a fluoroscope,
a portable instrument, designed in collaboration with the
Home Office, for medico-legal and other investigation.

Correspondence

Serum for Influenza

SIR,—On analogy with other virus diseases such as
measles it seems reasonable to assume that serum obtained
from patients convalescent from influenza might be of
therapeutic benefit. The suggestion was, we believe, first
put forward by Dr. Herbert French in 1919, but has
never been practised, at any rate on a large scale. The
recent researches of Laidlaw on the transmission of
influenza to ferrets have shown that the creatures do in
fact develop antibodies as the result of an attack. This
would be a strong point in favour of the use of con-
valescent serum were it not that after a few months of
immunity they become again susceptible, even though
antibodies are still in the blood. Possibly, however, pro-
tection depends in part upon these substances and upon
their degree of concentration in the body.

Our purpose in writing this letter is to ask those medical
men who are now dealing with influenzal patients to
obtain blood from them when they are convalescent. If
they will send either the blood or preferably the patient
to the bacteriological department, Guy’s Hospital, a batch
of mixed sera will be obtained and treatment of influenzal
patients carried out with the usual controls. It is hoped
in this way to decide whether the serum is of any value,
and if so to aim at the collection of large supplies so
that we may at last have some substance of definite
therapeutic and prophylactic value to guard the population
against future epidemics. Will those doctors who are
good enough to collaborate in this manner kindly select
only those patients in whom the diagnosis of influenza
was unquestionable and preferably uncomplicated? Blood
may be collected into a sterilized vessel by any of the
recognized aseptic methods of venepuncture.

Instructions for Collection of Serum.—If apparatus is not
to hand, on receipt of a message at Hop 1654 collecting
apparatus will be sent to any medical man offering to send
blood. This will consist of a sterilized needle and rubber
connexion fitted to a sterilized 250 c.cm. screw-capped bottle.
The skin over an arm vein should be carefully cleaned, the
vein distended by pressure higher up the arm, and vene-
puncture performed in the ordinary way, the blood being run
directly into the bottle. When this is nearly full the pressure
on the arm is released, the needle withdrawn, a pad placed on
the site of puncture, and the cap screwed on to the bottle.
The blood should then be sent directly to this department.
The whole procedure must be as aseptic as possible.

If the patient is sent to the laboratory for blood collec-
tion a preliminary telephone message to the above number
would be appreciated.—We are, etc.,

A. H. DOUTHWAITE.

Bacteriological Department Guy s F. A. KNoOTT.

Hospital, S.E.1, Jan.

Nutritional Anaemia in the East End of London

SIR,—I have read- with interest Dr. Leonard Findlay’s
article in the Journal of January 2 dealing with haemo-
globin and red cell estimations in children admitted to
the wards of the Princess Elizabeth of York Hospital for
Children. The subject is, I think, of great importance,
and no one would lightly disregard conclusions drawn by
Dr. Findlay, for whom I personally have a high regard.
It is therefore with some trepidation that I venture to
ask your readers to consider his findings critically before
they conclude that widespread iron prophylaxis for infants
is superfluous.
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Professor HENRY Tonks, F.R.C.S., who died on January
8 at his studio in Chelsea, was rightly looked upon as one
of the most distinguished of living truants from medicine.
From Cliftcn College he went to the Royal Sussex County
Hospital at Brighton as a pupil, and thence to the London
Hospital. He qualified in 1886, and became a Fellow of
the Royal College of Surgeons of England in 1888 after
holding house appointments and acting as temporary
demonstrator of anatomy at “The London.” Then fol-
lowed a period of duty as senior resident medical officer
at the Royal Free Hospital. By that time, however, he
had made up his mind to abandon medicine for painting,
and after working under Fred Brown at the Westminster
School of Art he went with him as assistant at the Slade
School when Brown was appointed to succeed Legros
as professor of fine art at University College, London,
and he in turn succeeded Brown in 1918, holding the chair
until 1930. As a teacher of painting Tonks had unique
gifts and he wielded very great influence. As a painter
he was much admired, especially by brother painters, and
last October a special exhibition of his works was given
at the Tate Gallery, where seven pictures by him are
permanently housed. During the war Tonks served with
the Red Cross in France and elsewhere, and-as one of
the officially recognized artists at the front he made many
paintings, his most important picture of that period being
“ An Underground Clearing Station, Arras,” now in the
Imperial War Museum collection. On " his return to
England he did valuable service at the Queen’s Hospital
for Facial Injuries, Sidcup, and more than seventy pastel
drawings by him of men treated there for wounds received
during the war will be found in the Army Medical
Collection at the Museum of the Royal College of
Surgeons of England. : -

Dr. W. McKiM MarrioTT, whose death from appendi-
citis occurred on November 11, 1936, was only 51 years
of age. He had held- the position of professor of
paediatrics for twenty years in the Schecol of Medicine at
Washington University, St. Louis, U.S.A., where for a
considerable number of years he had also acted as dean
of this school. On July 1, 1936, he took up his new
appointment of dean and director of research at the
University of California School of Medicine. His con-
tributions to paediatrics, especially in the field of infant
nutrition, will ensure him a lasting reputation.

Dr. JaMEsS McCoNEcHY, who practised at Bramwell,
Leeds, for nearly half a'century, has died at the age of
72. He was born in Scotland, and graduated M.B., C.M.
of the University of Glasgow in 1886. After acting for
a time as medical officer to the P. & O. Steam Navigation
Company he settled in general practice at Bramwell, and
continued in harness until a few weeks ago. He joined
the British Medical Association in 1918.

' Medico-Legal

MISLEADING MEDICAL TITLES

A SUCCESSFUL PROSECUTION

At Lambeth police court on January 6, before Mr.
McKenna, William Mellor of East Dulwich Road, East
Dulwich, was summoned at the instance of the Medical
Defence Union for contraventions of the Medical Act, 1858.
Mr. G. D. Roberts, counsel, instructed by Messrs. Hempsons,
solicitors, appeared on behalf of the Union, and the
defendant, who pleaded “ Not Guilty,” was represented by
Mr. W. H. Chitty, solicitor.

Mr. Roberts stated that the defendant was brought up on
three summonses under the Medical Act. The first was for
wilfully and falsely using the description *“ Medical Examiner,”
thereby implying that he was registered under the Act; the
second was for similarly using the title *“ Doctor of Medicine,”
contrary to Section 40; and the third was for using the

description of “Doctor ” with a like implication. The first
two of these charges arose out of a form completed by Mr.
Mellor for a Miss Pitman, who had applied to the Air
Ministry for a private pilot licence. The requirement that
such form should be in proper order was obviously very
important from the Air Ministry’s point of view, and a careful
check was made of all signatures to such applications. At
the top of the form was a notice that it must be completed
by a registered medical practitioner holding British qualifica-
tions. At the foot Mr. Mellor had signed himself “ William
Mellor, Medical Examiner,” and had added “M.A., M.D,,
B.Sc., Lic.cHom.Med. (India).” The third summons was in
respect of the nameplate outside his surgery, which bore the
title “Dr. Wm., Mellor,” and in brackets after his name
“India. Osteopath and Homeopath, U.S.A.” Mr. Mellor’s
name was not on the British Medical Register. He claimed
to hold a diploma of the Western University, Kapurthala,
but the college was not recognized as issuing diplomas
registrable in this country.

The defendant, in evidence, produced a number of certifi-
cates and diplomas, and declared that he held four degrees
as a result of examinations in the London and Liverpool
extensions of an Indian and of some American universitics
or colleges. He had been granted the degree of “ Doctor of
Osteopathy ” of New Jersey College, U.S.A., and “ Doctor of
Medicine and Master Diagnostician” of the American
Academy of Medicine and Surgery. He had never held
himself out to be on the British Medical Register, nor
attempted to practise as such. It was submitted on his
behalf that there was here no case of wilfully and falsely
using a title or description.

On the first summons, that of wrongly using the title
“ Medical Examiner,” Mr. Mellor was fined ten pounds with
twenty guineas costs. On the second summons, which related
to the same occasion, no fine was imposed, and the third,
based on the nameplate, was dismissed.

Universities and Colleges

UNIVERSITY OF CAMBRIDGE

Dr. John Alfred Ryle, Regius Professor of Physic, has been
eleclted to a professorial fellowship at Gonville and Caius
College.

UNIVERSITY OF LONDON

The following candidates have been approved ‘at the exam-
inations indicated:

M.D.—Branch I (Medicine): J. A. Brocklebank, A. M. R. Cann,
E. A. Danino, C. J. Gavey, N. M. Green, R. R. Henderson,
A. L. P. Jeffeay, M.S., E. Jones, E. I. Jones, F. A. Jones, A. L.
Light, M.S., G. A. M. Lintott, Mary F. Lockett, B, McArdle,
D. C. Reavell, A. M. Stewart-Wallace, J. B. L. Tombleson.
Branch 11 (Patlwlogy): G. J. Cunningham, A. H. T. Robb-Smith
%vaersnty Medal). Branch I1I (Psychological Medicine): A. C.

alzell (University Medal). Branch 1V (Midwifery and Diseases
of Wor.neni:: Agnes V, Kelynack, L. W. Lauste, G. G. Macdonald,
Marjorie oberts, J. W. Schabort, Violet H. Whapham.
Branch V (Hygiene): K. Biden-Stecle.

M.S.—Branch I (Surgery): J. Howkins, J. B. G. Muir (University
medal), E. J. Smith.

Lectures at University College

Professor J. C. Drummond will deliver a course of six public
lectures on “Problems of Nutrition” at University College,
Gower Street, W.C., on Tuesdays, at 5 p.m., from January
19 to February 23, and a course of six public lectures on
“Chemical Structure and Pharmacological Action” will be
given by Dr. H. R. Ing on Mondays, at 5 p.m., from
January 25 to March 1. Admission to all the lectures
without fee or ticket.

Recognition of Teachers
The following have been recognized as teachers of the
University in the subjects indicated in parentheses:
King’s College: Dr. H. A. Dunlop (Pharmacology).

St. Bartholomew’s Hospital Medical College: Mr. J. P. Hosford
(Surgery) ; Dr. James Maxwell and Dr. A. W. Spence (Medicine).
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St. George's Hosp:tal Medical School: Dr. J. D. Benjafield
(Pathology and Bacteriology) ; Mr. R. Marnham (Surgery) ; Dr.

F. McN. Scott (Medicine).

Lona’on (Royal Free Hospltal) School of Medicine for Women:
Mrs. Joan Taylor, M.B., D.P.H. (Bacteriology).

London School of ’Dental Surgery: Mr. B. W. Fickling,
M.R.CS,, and Mr. D. G. Walker, M.B. (Dental Surgery).

National Instit.:te for Medical Research: Dr. Percnval Hartley
(Hygiene and Public Health) ; Sir Patrick Laidlaw (Pathology and
Bacteriology).

Lectures

A course of three lectures on *“Some Disorders of the
Peripheral Circulation” will be given by Professor E. D.
Telford at St. Mary’s Hospital Medical School on Tuesdays,
February 9, 16, and 23, at 5.30 p.m. Professor Charles
Pannett will take the chair at the first lecture.

UNIVERSITY OF ABERDEEN

The King, on the recommendation of the Secretary of State
for Scotland, has approved the appointment of Professor
Lancelot Hogben, D.Sc.,, F.R.S., to the Regius Chair of
Natural History, in place of Professor James Ritchie, resigned.

ROYAL FACULTY OF PHYSICIANS AND
SURGEONS OF GLASGOW

At a meeting of the Royal Faculty of Physicians and Surgeons
of Glasgow, held on January 4, with the president, Professor
Archibald Young, in the chair, the following were admitted
Fellows of the Faculty: J. S. Cramer, M.B., Ch.B., R. A.
Davar, M.B., B.S., A. Hutchison, MB ChB Agnes T.
Kennie, M.B., Ch.B., S. M. Laird, M.B., ChB P J. Molloy,
M.D,, B. B. Mukerjee M.B., C. C Saha MB M.Sc., T. S.
Subramanlam MB.,

Medical News

According to information received from the Ministry
of Health there were 768 deaths from influenza in 122

great towns in the week ended January 9 compared with

325 for the previous week. The number of notifications
of primary and influenzal pneumonia throughout the
country showed a corresponding increase from 1,513 to
2,321. Of the 768 deaths, 558 occurred in the South-
Eastern area (including London) 98 in the Midlands,
87 in the North, 18 in Wales, 5 in the South-West, and
2 in the Eastern Counties.

The Hunterian Lecture will be delivered before the
Hunterian Society of London at the Mansion House on
Monday, January 18, at 9 p.m., by Dr. J. Schoemaker
of The Hague, on “The Surgery of Gastro-duodenal
Inflammation.” The annual dinner of the society will be
held at the May Fair Hotel on February 17.

The annual meeting of the Royal Microscopical Society
will be held at B.M.A. House, Tavistock Square, on
Wednesday, January 20, at 5.30 p.m., when Dr. R. S.
Clay will deliver his presidential address on “ The
Mechanical Development of the Microscope.”

The next meeting of the Réunions de Morphologie
Medico-Chirurgicale will be held at 9 p.m. at 7, Rue de 1a
Chaise, Paris, on Wednesday, January 20. The topics to
be discussed include the morphology of nerve roots and
difficulties attending their avulsion ; sexual inversion and
sex determination; and the problems of facial recon-
structive surgery. This society, which meets monthly,
associates specialists in orthopaedics, ~physiotherapy,
plastic surgery, endocrmology, in symposia on questions
relating to the prevention and treatment of deformities.
Further information may be had from Dr. C. Claoue,
39, Rue Schefter, Paris.

The campaign of the Road Accidents Emergency
Council will be opened with a conference in the Living-
stone Hall, Westminster, on Saturday, January 23, attended
by delegates from affiliated and other organizations. A
resolution will be submitted in the following terms: “ This
conference of delegates, representative of the religious,

educational, social, and industrial life of the country,
gravely concerned at the appalling toll of killed and
injured on the roads, which shows no sign of abatement,
calls upon the Government to take immediate action to
(a) establish special courts for the trial of road traffic
offences ; (b) adapt the existing highway system to ensure
a larger measure of safety to all users; (c) control effec-
tively the speed of motor vehicles on public highways ;
(d) ensure that adequate compensation is paid in respect
of all victims of road accidents in cases where the victims
are not solely responsible for their death or injury.”

Inquiries should be addressed to the secretary, Road
Accidents’ Delegate Conference, 37, Norfolk Street, W.C.2.

A conference to discuss the administration of the Milk
(Special Designations) Order, 1936, with respect to
accredited milk will be held under the auspices of the
Royal Sanitary Institute at the Central Hall, Westminster,
S.W.,, on Thursday, January 28, at 2 p.m., when Mr.
Thomas Baxter, chairman of the Milk Marketmg Board,
will preside, and the discussion will be opened by Dr.
W. G. Savage. Invitations have been sent to local autho-
rities in England and Wales to appoint representatives to
this meeting.

The seventh annual report of the National Radium
Trust and Radium Commission, 1935-6, including a
statistical report, is published to-day as a Command Paper
(Cmd. 5342), price 1s. 6d.

The London University Gazette of January 6 announces
that the Senate of the University invites applications for
the chair of pathology tenable at the British Post-Graduate
Medical School, Ducane Road, W. The salary is £2,000
per annum, and the latest date for applications is April 16.

As already announced, Hospital Week in London and
Greater London is timed for May 2 to 8, immediately
before the Coronation. Over eighty hospitals are uniting
in one great concentrated attack instead of flag days
scattered throughout the year. The central committee
in charge of the arrangements is in search of an emblem
which can become to Hospitals Week what the Red
Cross and the Flanders poppy already are in public
estimation. Suggestions should be addressed to the hon.
secretary, Hospitals Week, 36, Kingsway, W.C.2, but no
prizes are offered.

The issue of Revue Médicale Francaise for December
is devoted to urology, that of Le Sud Médical et Chirurgical
for December to industrial accidents and social medicine,
and that of Paris Médical for January 2 to tuberculosis.

The Hungarian Society of Public Health celebrated the
fiftieth anniversary of its foundation on December 12,
1936.

Professor Martel has been elected president of the
Académie de Médecine for 1937 in succession to Professor
Hartmann, and Professor Besangon succeeds him as vice-
president.

Dr. Baumgartner has been elected presvdent of the
Académie de Chirurgie for 1937, and Dr. Edmond
Sergent, director of the Pasteur Institute at Algiers, has
been elected non-resident member of the Académie des
Sciences in place of the late Dr. Charles Nicolle.

The Laveran gold medal of the Société de Pathologie
Exotique of Paris has been conferred on Dr. Andrew W.
Sellards, associate professor of tropical medicine, Harvard
University Medical School, in recognition of his prepara-
tion of an effective vaccine against yellow fever.

Last August the population of Berlin increased by about
5,000 births up to 4,226,040. The increase continued in
September, when 5,276 living children were born and
4,003 persons died.

The sale of contraceptive appliances by automatic
machines or advertisement as to where they can be
obtained has been forbidden in Vienna on pain of a
fine of 200 schillings or a fortnight’s imprisonment.



